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BRIAN E. HOLTHUS, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 2720 
beh@juwlaw.com 
JOLLEY URGA WOODBURY & HOLTHUS 
50 S. Stephanie Street, Suite 202 
Henderson, Nevada 89012 
(702) 699-7500 Telephone 
(702) 699-7555 Facsimile 
 
Christopher W. Niro (pro hac vice pending) 
Matthew De Preter (pro hac vice pending) 
ARONBERG GOLDGEHN DAVIS & GARMISA 
330 North Wabash Avenue, Suite 1700 
Chicago, Illinois 60611 
(312) 828-9600 
cniro@agdglaw.com  
cdepreter@agdglaw.com   
 
Attorneys for Plaintiff MPI LLC 
 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
 

DISTRICT OF NEVADA 

 
MPI LLC 

 Plaintiffs, 

v. 

SORTING ROBOTICS, INC., and 
HARRISON BARD an individual doing 
business as CUSTOM CONES USA, 

 Defendants. 

 Case No. 
 
 
COMPLAINT FOR PATENT 
INFRINGEMENT 
 
 

 

 Plaintiff, MPI LLC (“MPI”) for its complaint against Defendants Sorting Robotics, Inc. 

(“Sorting Robotics”) and Harrison Bard d/b/a Custom Cones USA (“Custom Cones”) alleges as 

follows: 

/ / / 

/ / / 
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INTRODUCTION 

1. This is a civil action for infringement of United States Patent No. 11,130,596 

(“the ‘596 Patent”) under the Patent Act, 35 U.S.C. §100 et seq., based on Defendants use, and 

its contribution to and inducement of others use of its Automated Infused Pre-Roll Machine.  A 

copy of the ‘596 Patent is attached as Exhibit A. 

2. MPI brings this action ins response to repeated, knowing, and willful 

infringement by Defendants of MPI’s patent rights in its novel folded packages including pre-

rolled cones which is disclosed in the ‘596 Patent. 

3. MPI is a company dedicated to building technologies to assist manufacturing and 

packaging companies make and deliver high quality pre-rolled cones and other packages.   

4. MPIs technology is currently being used in connection with the creation of folded 

packages and pre-rolled cones containing hemp. 

THE PARTIES 

5. MPI is a limited liability company organized under the laws of the state of 

Nevada having a place of business at 3645 W. Twain Ave. Las Vegas, Nevada 89103. 

6. MPI is the sole owner of all right title and interest in and to the ‘596 Patent by 

assignment recorded with the United States Patent Office on February 4, 2020, Reel/Frame 

051717/0161. 

7. Sorting Robotics, Inc. is a company organized under the laws of the state of 

Delaware with a principal place of business at 7647 Hayvenhurst Ave. Suite 39, Van Nuys, 

California 91406. 

8. Upon information and belief Harrison Bard is an individual, doing business as 

Custom Cones USA with an address of 7059 S. 190th Street, Kent, WA 98032. 

/ / / 
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JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

9. This court has subject matter jurisdiction over this patent infringement action 

pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331 and 1338(a). 

10. This court has personal jurisdiction over Defendants because Defendants 

regularly solicit and conduct business in Nevada and engage in other persistent courses of 

conduct in Nevada.   

11. This court also has personal jurisdiction over Defendants because, upon 

information and belief, Custom Cones commits acts of infringement in Nevada, including but 

not limited to exhibiting the infringing technology at trade shows taking place in Las Vegas, 

Nevada, and directly infringing one or more claims of the ‘596 Patent.   

12. Further, upon information and belief, Sorting Robotics contributes to and induces 

the infringement of Custom Cones within Nevada. 

13. On or about October 18 – 21, 2021 Custom Cones attended, exhibited and 

participated in NJBIZCON at the Las Vegas Convention Center. 

14. Through Custom Cones website, www.customconesusa.com, Custom Cones and 

Sorting Robotics at least advertise and offer to sell in Nevada the Automated Infused Pre-Roll 

Machine for the purpose of manufacturing infringing cones.  

15. Venue is proper in this judicial district pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1391 and 1400 at 

least because Defendants have committed and continues to commit, acts of infringement in 

Nevada, including but not limited to making, selling and offering to sell products that infringe 

one or more claims of the ‘596 Patent. 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 
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FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF 
Direct Infringement of the ‘596 Patent 

(35 U.S.C. §271(a)) 
 

16. MPI incorporates by reference the allegations of the preceding paragraphs as if 

fully recited herein. 

17. The ‘596 Patent is valid and enforceable. 

18. Upon information and belief, Custom Cones has been, and currently is, directly 

infringing at least Claim 9 of the ‘596 Patent by making, selling, offering for sale the Automated 

Infused Pre-Roll Machine (“the Machine”) and pre-rolled cones manufactured and filled using 

the Machine within the United States. 

19. Custom Cones is the registrant of the internet domain customconesusa.com 

20. Custom Cones controls the content displayed on the internet website accessible 

through www.customconesusa.com. 

21. At all times relevant, Custom Cones is responsible for uploading and managing 

the content displayed on the internet website accessible through 

https://customconesusa.com/automated-infused-pre-roll-machine/. (the “Pre-Roll Website”). 

22. The Pre-Roll Website is accessible within the State of Nevada. 

23. Upon information and belief, customers and prospective customers within this 

judicial district can access and view the Pre-Roll Website. 

24. At all times relevant, through the Pre-Roll Website, Custom Cones demonstrated 

how the Machine functions to form folded, infused pre-roll packages. 

25. On October 19, 2021 counsel for MPI sent a letter to Custom Cones informing 

them of the issuance of the ‘596 Patent.  A true and correct copy of the October 19, 2021 Letter 

is attached as Exhibit B. 
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26. In that letter, MPI provided Custom Cones with a representative claim chart 

showing Custom Cones’ infringement of the ‘596 Patent. 

27. The letter and claim chart therein provided images of Custom Cones’ product 

manufacturing. 

28. Further, MPI requested that Custom Cones stop manufacturing, selling, offering 

to sell and promoting the Machine and folded packages manufactured using the machine. 

29. A true and correct reproduction of the Pre-Roll Website is below: 

 

30. Through the Pre-Roll Website, Custom Cones provides customers and the public 

with a detailed description of the Machine.   

31. A true and correct reproduction of the Pre-Roll Website is shown below: 
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32. Custom Cones, through the Pre-Roll Website provide the product specifications 

for the Machine.   

33. A true and correct reproduction of the Pre-Roll Website product specifications for 

the Machine is below: 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 
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34. Custom Cones, through the Pre-Roll Website, states that the Machine is capable 

of infusing up to 800 Pre-Rolls Per Hour. 

35. The Machine produces a folded package that has a core of fluid. 

36. Custom Cones states, through the Pre-Roll Website, that the Machine “Infuses a 

rod of oil perfectly in the middle of the pre-roll!” 

37. A true and correct reproduction of the Pre-Roll Website is below: 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 
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38. The pre-rolls manufactured, sold, and offered for sale by Custom Cones are 

folded packages comprised of: 

a. A hollow paper cone having an exterior, an interior, a length, a width, and 

two ends opposite each other joined by a middle section, where one end is 

a proximal end, and the other end is a distal end and where the length is 

greater than the width; and 

b. a filling within the cone; 

c. wherein the distal end comprises approximately a quarter of the length of 

the cone; 

d. wherein the distal end of the cone terminates at a rim; and 

e. wherein a portion of the distal end is crimped in on itself and folded into 

the interior of the cone such that the rim of the distal end is held by plastic 

deformation of the paper within the interior of the cone such that the 
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folded portion of the distal end substantially covers the filling within the 

cone and forms a circumferential lip of paper at the distal end. 

f. Additionally, the pre-rolls manufactured by Custom Cones also include an 

access hole has a diameter that is less than the width of the distal end at 

every point along the length of the distal end. 

g. Additionally, the pre-rolls manufactured by Custom Cones also include a 

filling, wherein the filling further comprises plant matter and a core of 

fluid, the core of fluid being formed along the length of the cone and 

separated from the paper cone by the plant matter. 

39. The pre-rolls manufactured by Custom Cones as described in paragraph 35 

constitute direct infringement of at least Claim 9 of the ‘596 Patent. 

40. Custom Cones posted the video available (last accessed on November 11, 2021) 

at: https://m.facebook.com/CustomConesUSA/videos/las-vegas-bizcon-

2021/426009295804456/?m_entstream_source=timeline&__tn__=-R. 

41. Custom Cones attended MJBIZCON 2021 in Las Vegas in October 2021. 

42. Custom Cones occupied a booth in the central hall of the Las Vegas Convention 

Center with booth number C6520. 

43. During MJBIZCON, Custom Cones demonstrated the operation of the Machine. 

44. During MJBIZCON, Custom Cones advertised, sold, or offered for sale, pre-

rolled folded packages as described in Paragraph 35. 

45. On or about August 2, 2021, and at all times relevant, Custom Cones filmed and 

caused to be uploaded to YouTube.com a video titled: “Automated Pre-Roll Infusion Machine”.   

46. Custom Cones uploaded the video available (last accessed on November 11, 

2021) at: https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=xRY1D1UCKQQ. (the “YouTube Video”). 

Case 2:22-cv-07464-JAK-PD   Document 1   Filed 11/15/21   Page 9 of 83   Page ID #:9
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47. Upon information and belief, Harrison Bard is the individual recorded in the 

video available at https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=xRY1D1UCKQQ.  

48. The YouTube Video demonstrates the operation of the Machine and the 

manufacture of folded packages. 

49. The YouTube Video shows Custom Cones using the Machine to manufacture 

folded packages as described in Paragraph 35. 

50. Custom Cones has had knowledge of the ‘596 Patent and its infringement since at 

least its receipt of the October 19, 2021 letter from counsel for MPI. 

51. Custom Cones infringement has been knowing, intentional, willful and deliberate.  

52. Custom Cones infringement has caused substantial and irreparable harm to MPI’s 

business and property rights.  Specifically, as competitors with MPI, Custom Cones’ 

infringement and MPI’s harm will continue unless Custom Cones is enjoined from its 

infringement pursuant to 35 U.S.C. §283.  MPI has no adequate remedy at law. 

53. Custom Cones deliberate infringement without any reasonable justification makes 

this an exceptional case, entitling MPI to an award of, inter alia, attorneys fees under 35 U.S.C. 

§285. 

SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF 
Contributory Infringement of the ‘596 Patent 

(35 U.S.C. § 271(c)) 
 

54. MPI incorporates by reference the allegations of the preceding paragraphs as if 

fully recited herein. 

55. Sorting Robotics learned of the technology of the ‘596 Patent on or before its 

receipt of MPI’s counsel’s letter of October 19, 2021.   

56. In that letter, MPI’s counsel notified Sorting Robotics of its infringement and 

Sorting Robotics then continued its infringement despite this knowledge. 

Case 2:22-cv-07464-JAK-PD   Document 1   Filed 11/15/21   Page 10 of 83   Page ID #:10

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=xRY1D1UCKQQ


 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
5

0
 S

. 
S

T
E

P
H

A
N

IE
 S

T
R

E
E

T
, 

S
U

IT
E

 2
0

2
, 

H
E

N
D

E
R

S
O

N
, 

N
V

 8
9

0
1

2
 

T
E

L
E

P
H

O
N

E
: 

(7
0

2
) 

6
9

9
-7

5
0

0
  

 F
A

X
: 

(7
0

2
) 

6
9

9
-7

5
5

5
  

  
  

 

 

919951  

Page 11 of 19 

 

57. Upon information and belief, Sorting Robotics manufactures, sells, offers for sale, 

the Machine. 

58. Sorting Robotics is the registrant of the internet domain sortingrobotics.com. 

59. Sorting Robotics controls the content on the website available through 

www.sortingrobotics.com (the “SR Website”). 

60. The SR Website can be viewed and accessed by individuals in the state of 

Nevada. 

61. The SR Website is not a passive informational website. 

62. Customers, including residents of the state of Nevada, can purchase products 

directly through the SR Website. 

63. Upon information and belief, Sorting Robotics has sold, or offered for sale 

products to customers in the state of Nevada. 

64. Sorting Robotics is the manufacturer of, among other things, an Automated Pre-

Roll Infusion Machine. 

65. The Automated Pre-Roll Infusion Machine manufactured by Sorting Robotics has 

the name Jiko.   

66. Upon information and belief, Sorting Robotics has manufactured, sold, offered 

for sale, advertised Jiko in the United States. 

67. Upon information and belief, the pre rolls manufactured by Custom Cones as 

described in Paragraph 35 are, in fact, manufactured by a Jiko machine manufactured by Sorting 

Robotics. 

68. On or about October 19, 2021 counsel for MPI sent Sorting Robotics a letter 

informing them of their infringement.  A true and correct copy of that letter is attached as 

Exhibit C. 
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69. These actions and Sorting Robotics’ knowledge of the ’596 Patent and its 

infringement of the patent show that Sorting Robotics sells or offers to sell its Jiko Machine 

knowing it is especially made or especially adapted for practicing the invention of the ʼ596 

Patent and is not a staple article or commodity of commerce suitable for substantial non-

infringing use. 

70. Specifically, the Jiko is designed for use to create folded packages covered by at 

least Claim 9 of the ‘596 Patent as described in Paragraph 35.  The Jiko is designed for this 

infringing purpose and is not suited for other purposes. 

71. Upon information and belief, Sorting Robotics has been, and currently is, 

indirectly infringing at least Claim 9 of the ‘596 Patent by actively contributing to its customers’ 

direct infringement within the United States. 

72. Sorting Robotics’ actions constitute contributory infringement in violation of 35 

U.S.C. §271(c). 

73. Sorting Robotics’ infringement has been knowing, intentional, willful, and 

deliberate. 

74. Sorting Robotics’ infringement has caused substantial and irreparable harm to 

MPI’s business and property rights.  Specifically, as competitors with MPI, Sorting Robotics 

infringement has caused and will continue to cause lost sales, lost customers, and a decrease in 

market share.   

75. MPI will continue to suffer harm unless Sorting Robotics is enjoined from its 

infringement pursuant to 35 U.S.C. §283.  MPI has no adequate remedy at law. 

76. Sorting Robotics’ deliberate infringement without any reasonable justification 

makes this an exceptional case, entitling MPI to an award of attorneys fees under 35 U.S.C. 

§285. 
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THIRD CLAIM FOR RELIEF 
Inducing Infringement of the ‘596 Patent 

(35 U.S.C. § 271(b)) 
 

77. MPI incorporates by reference the allegations of the preceding paragraphs as if 

fully recited herein. 

78. Upon information and belief, Sorting Robotics has been, and currently is, 

indirectly infringing at least Claim 9 of the ‘596 Patent by actively and knowingly inducing its 

customers to use the Jiko machine within the United States. 

79. Sorting Robotics encourages this infringing activity by selling, leasing, or 

providing the Jiko machine to its customers, and providing instructions and related 

documentation, materials, marketing, advertising, training, or support for the operation of its Jiko 

machine.  Sorting Robotics has done this with knowledge of the ‘596 Patent. 

80. As described above, Sorting Robotics has had knowledge of the ‘596 Patent since 

at least its receipt of the October 19, 2021 letter from counsel for MPI.   

81. Despite its knowledge of the ‘596 Patent, Sorting Robotics continued to sell the 

infringing Jiko machine and has continued to offer to sell and advertise it through the SR 

Website.  

82. For example, Sorting Robotics provides a video through the SR Website 

demonstrating the operation of the Jiko machine.  The video is available at 

https://www.sortingrobotics.com/jiko  (Last accessed on November 12, 2021). 

83. Further, Sorting Robotics Founder and CEO Nothal Partansky appears on a 

separate video available through the SR Website and also https://vimeo.com/580394014 (Last 

accessed on November 12, 2021) explaining the Jiko machine and, specifically “the end product 

of what is produced after a pre-roll is infused by a Jiko Machine.” A true and correct image of 

that video is reproduced below: 
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84. Sorting Robotics’ active selling, instructions, videos, documentation and related 

materials instruct at least one of its customers, including but not limited to Custom Cones, in the 

United States to use the Jiko machine to manufacture folded packages as claimed in at least 

Claim 9 of the ‘596 Patent. 

85. Sorting Robotics instructs its customers to use the Jiko machine to create folded 

packages described in Paragraph 35, above that also feature an access hole has a diameter that is 

less than the width of the distal end at every point along the length of the distal end. 

86. Further,  Sorting Robotics instructs its customers to use the Jiko machine to create 

folded packages described in Paragraph 35, above that also include a filling, wherein the filling 

further comprises plant matter and a core of fluid, the core of fluid being formed along the length 

of the cone and separated from the paper cone by the plant matter. 
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87. Sorting Robotics encourages this activity even though it actually knew, 

reasonably should have known, or willfully blinded itself to, the fact that MPI has a patent on the 

relevant technology. 

88. Sorting Robotics’ acts constitutes active inducement of patent infringement in 

violation of 35 U.S.C. §271(b). 

89. Sorting Robotics’ infringement has been knowing, intentional, willful, and 

deliberate.  For example, Sorting Robotics learned of the ‘596 Patent and continued to sell, offer 

for sale the Jiko machine. 

90. Sorting Robotics’ infringement has caused substantial and irreparable harm to 

MPI’s business and proprietary rights.  Specifically, as competitors with MPI, Sorting Robotics 

infringement has caused and will continue to cause lost sales, lost customers, and a decrease in 

market share.  MPI will continue to suffer this harm unless Sorting Robotics is enjoined from its 

infringement pursuant to 35 U.S.C. §283.  MPI has no adequate remedy at law. 

91. Sorting Robotics deliberate infringement without any reasonable justification 

makes this an exceptional case, entitling MPI to an award of attorneys fees under 35 U.S.C. 

§285. 

FOURTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF 
Direct Infringement of the ‘596 Patent 

(35 U.S.C. § 271(a)) 
 

92. MPI incorporates by reference the allegations of the preceding paragraphs as if 

fully recited herein. 

93. Upon information and belief, Sorting Robotics has been, and currently is, directly 

infringing at least Claim 9 of the ‘596 Patent by manufacturing pre-rolls using the Jiko machine 

within the United States. 
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94. Sorting Robotics has done this and promoted the use of the pre-rolls with 

knowledge of the ‘596 Patent. 

95. On information and belief, despite its knowledge of the ‘596 Patent, Sorting 

Robotics continues to manufacture pre-rolls using the Jiko machine.  

96. Sorting Robotics Founder and CEO Nothal Partansky appears in a video available 

through the SR Website and also https://vimeo.com/580394014 (Last accessed on November 12, 

2021) explaining the Jiko machine and, specifically “the end product of what is produced after a 

pre-roll is infused by a Jiko Machine.” A true and correct image of that video is reproduced 

below: 

 

97. Sorting Robotics’ manufactures the folded package using the Jiko machine as 

claimed in at least Claim 9 of the ‘596 Patent. 
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98. Sorting Robotics uses the Jiko machine to manufacture folded packages as 

described in Paragraph 35, above that also feature an access hole has a diameter that is less than 

the width of the distal end at every point along the length of the distal end. 

99. Sorting Robotics uses the Jiko machine to manufacture folded packages as 

described in Paragraph 35, above that also include a filling, wherein the filling further comprises 

plant matter and a core of fluid, the core of fluid being formed along the length of the cone and 

separated from the paper cone by the plant matter. 

100. Sorting Robotics has manufactured the infringing folded packages even though it 

actually knew, reasonably should have known, or willfully blinded itself to, the fact that MPI has 

a patent on the relevant technology. 

101. Sorting Robotics’ acts constitutes direct infringement in violation of 35 U.S.C. 

§271(a). 

102. Sorting Robotics’ infringement has been knowing, intentional, willful, and 

deliberate.  For example, Sorting Robotics learned of the ‘596 Patent and continued to 

manufacture folded packages using the Jiko machine. 

103. Sorting Robotics’ infringement has caused substantial and irreparable harm to 

MPI’s business and proprietary rights.  Specifically, as competitors with MPI, Sorting Robotics 

infringement has caused and will continue to cause lost sales, lost customers, and a decrease in 

market share.  MPI will continue to suffer this harm unless Sorting Robotics is enjoined from its 

infringement pursuant to 35 U.S.C. §283.  MPI has no adequate remedy at law. 

104. Sorting Robotics deliberate infringement without any reasonable justification 

makes this an exceptional case, entitling MPI to an award of attorneys fees under 35 U.S.C. 

§285. 

/ / / 
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PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

WHEREFORE, MPI respectfully requests that this Court enter: 

a. Judgment that Custom Cones has infringed at least one claim of the ‘596 Patent in 

violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271(a); 

b. Judgment that Sorting Robotics has directly infringed, actively induced 

infringement of, and contributorily infringed at least one claim of the ‘596 Patent in violation of 

35 U.S.C. § 271(a), (b) and (c); 

c. A permanent injunction enjoining Custom Cones and its employees, agents, 

officers, directors, attorneys, successors, affiliates, subsidiaries, and assigns, and all other 

persons acting in active concert and participation with any of the foregoing entities, from 

infringing, contributing to the infringement of, or inducing the infringement of the ‘596 Patent; 

d. A permanent injunction enjoining Sorting Robotics and its employees, agents, 

officers, directors, attorneys, successors, affiliates, subsidiaries, and assigns, and all other 

persons acting in active concert and participation with any of the foregoing entities, from 

infringing, contributing to the infringement of, or inducing the infringement of the ‘596 Patent; 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 
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e. A declaration that this case is exceptional under 35 U.S.C. § 285 and an order 

awarding MPI its reasonable attorneys fees and costs; and 

f. Any such other and further relief as this Court deems just and proper. 

 DATED this 15th day of November 2021. 

 
Respectfully submitted, 

      JOLLEY URGA WOODBURY & HOLTHUS 
 
             
                 Brian E. Holthus, Esq._________________ 
      BRIAN E. HOLTHUS, ESQ. 
      Nevada Bar No. 2720 
      50 S. Stephanie Street, Suite 202 
      Henderson, Nevada 89012 
       
 

Christopher W. Niro (pro hac vice pending) 
Matthew De Preter (pro hac vice pending) 
ARONBERG GOLDGEHN DAVIS & GARMISA 
330 North Wabash Avenue, Suite 1700 
Chicago, Illinois 60611 
(312) 828-9600 
cniro@agdglaw.com  
cdepreter@agdglaw.com   
 
Attorneys for Plaintiff MPI LLC 
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MEMBER: LEGAL NETLINK ALLIANCE - AN INTERNATIONAL ALLIANCE OF INDEPENDENT LAW FIRMS 

 October 19, 2021 
 

SENT PURSUANT TO FRE 408 
 
Via Email and US Certified Mail 
 
Custom Cones USA 
7059 S. 190th St. 
Kent, WA 98032 
Contact@CustomConesUSA.com 
 
 RE: US Patent No. 11,130,596 
  
To Whom It May Concern: 
 

We represent MPI, LLC, the owner of US Patent No. 11,130,596 (the “ ‘596 Patent”) a 
copy of the ‘596 Patent is enclosed herewith for your review.  MPI takes the protection and 
enforcement of its intellectual property seriously.  The ‘596 Patent is directed to folded packages, 
including filled pre-rolled cones.  It has recently come to our attention that Custom Cones USA 
is at least using and offering to sell, if not actually selling, a machine specifically designed to 
manufacture folded packages. Particularly, we refer to the “Automated Infused Pre-Roll 
Machine” (the “Machine”) featured at https://customconesusa.com/automated-infused-pre-roll-
machine/ as well as on YouTube at https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=xRY1D1UCKQQ.  
Upon our review of the Machine, we have reason to believe that it infringes one or more claims 
of the ‘596 Patent. 
 

Pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 271(a) whoever without authority makes, uses, offers to sell, or 
sells any patented invention, within the United States or imports into the United States any 
patented invention during the term of the patent therefor, infringes the patent.  Under 35 U.S.C. § 
271(b) anyone that induces another to infringe a patent is also liable as an infringer.  Finally, 
under 35 U.S.C. § 271(c) anyone that offers to sell, sells, or imports a machine (or component 
thereof) that is especially made or adapted for use in infringement of a patent, and not having a 
substantial non-infringing use, is liable as an infringer. 

 
After reviewing the structure, operation, and output of the Machine, we believe that the 

Machine produces folded packages that infringe at least claims 9, 10, and 11 of the ‘596 Patent 
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and that the Machine itself is especially adapted to manufacture infringing packages without a 
substantial non-infringing purpose. 

 
For Example: 
 

US Patent No. 11,130,596 Packages Made Using the Machine (all images from 
https://customconesusa.com/buy-pre-rolled-cones/ and 
https://customconesusa.com/automated-infused-pre-roll-
machine) 

9. A folded package 
comprising: 

 
a hollow paper cone having an 
exterior, an interior, a length, a 
width, and two ends opposite 
each other joined by a middle 
section, where one end is a 
proximal end, and the other end 
is a distal end and where the 
length is greater than the width; 
and 
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a filling within the cone; 

 

 
wherein the distal end 
comprises approximately a 
quarter of the length of the 
cone; 

 
wherein the distal end of the 
cone terminates at a rim; and 
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wherein a portion of the distal 
end is crimped in on itself and 
folded into the interior of the 
cone such that the rim of the 
distal end is held by plastic 
deformation of the paper within 
the interior of the cone such 
that the folded portion of the 
distal end substantially covers 
the filling within the cone and 
forms a circumferential lip of 
paper at the distal end. 

 
 

 
10. The folded package as 
in claim 9, wherein an access 
hole has a diameter that is less 
than the width of the distal end 
at every point along the length 
of the distal end  
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11. The folded package as 
in claim 10 and including a 
filling, wherein the filling 
further comprises plant matter 
and a core of fluid, the core of 
fluid being formed along the 
length of the cone and 
separated from the paper cone 
by the plant matter. 

 
 

“a rod of oil is perfectly placed in the center of the 
pre-roll” see 
https://customconesusa.com/automated-infused-
pre-roll-machine/ 

 
We understand that the ‘596 patent only recently issued and that you may not have been 

aware of it until your receipt of this letter.  For at least that reason, we are taking this opportunity 
to apprise you of its existence and provide you with an opportunity to take measures to ensure 
that you cease infringing the ‘596 Patent going forward.  We are confident that the parties can 
come to a mutually agreeable arrangement to prevent further infringement without the need to 
resort to legal action. 

 
Therefore, we request that you stop manufacturing, selling, offing to sell, and promoting 

the Machine.  That includes conducting any further video or in-person demonstrations of the 
Machine either through the internet (on your website, YouTube, or others) and in-person 
demonstrations at your place of business, at customer locations, at trade shows, or other 
locations.  We request that you promptly remove, all videos that you (or someone at your 
direction) has posted of the formation of infringing packages from the internet, such as the 
videos presently on display at the web locations identified herein.  We request that you cease and 
desist all manufacturing, selling, and offering to sell any folded packages manufactured utilizing 
the Machine as shown in the videos on your website.   
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We request that you undertake to accomplish the foregoing immediately.  We further 
request that you provide a response to this letter within ten (10) days confirming that you are 
undertaking the foregoing measures.  To the extent that you require additional time, please 
provide us with an explanation of what you require and the reasons therefore within the fourteen 
day time period so that the parties can discuss how best to move forward.  As noted above, we 
are confident that the Parties can come to a mutually agreeable solution to the present 
infringement issue without Court intervention so that each may continue on their respective 
businesses. 

 
The foregoing is merely for discussion and exemplary purposes, is not limiting, and is 

subject to change pending further discovery.  It shall not be interpreted as constituting the totality 
of our analysis, assertions, or claims, and is made without prejudice of any kind.  

 
We look forward to receiving you response. 

 
Best Regards, 

       

       
 
M. Chip De Preter 

 
Encl. 
 
cc (w/ Encl.):  
Harrison Bard 
Harrison@customerconeusa.com  
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EXHIBIT C 
 

Case 2:22-cv-07464-JAK-PD   Document 1   Filed 11/15/21   Page 77 of 83   Page ID #:77



 
 
             
            
   

 
SHARON S.  

Aronberg Goldgehn Davis & 
Garmisa 
330 North Wabash Ave., Suite 
1700 
Chicago, Illinois 60611-3586 
TEL:  312-755-9600 
FAX: 312-828-9635 
www.agdglaw.com 
 
M. “Chip” De Preter 
DIRECT: 312-755-3153 
DIRECT FAX: 312-222-6364 
cdepreter@agdglaw.com 
 
 
   

 

MEMBER: LEGAL NETLINK ALLIANCE - AN INTERNATIONAL ALLIANCE OF INDEPENDENT LAW FIRMS 

 October 19, 2021 
 

SENT PURSUANT TO FRE 408 
 
Via Email and US Certified Mail 
 
Sorting Robotics, Inc. 
7647 Hayvenhurst Ave, Suite 39 
Van Nuys, CA 91406 
hello@sortingrobotics.com 
  

RE: US Patent No. 11,130,596 
  
To Whom It May Concern: 
 

We represent MPI, LLC, the owner of US Patent No. 11,130,596 (the “ ‘596 Patent”) a 
copy of the ‘596 Patent is enclosed herewith for your review.  MPI takes the protection and 
enforcement of its intellectual property seriously.  The ‘596 Patent is directed to folded packages, 
including filled pre-rolled cones.  It has recently come to our attention that Custom Cones USA 
is at least using and offering to sell, if not actually selling, a machine specifically designed to 
manufacture folded packages. Particularly, we refer to the “Jiko” automated pre-roll infusion 
robot shown (the “Machine”) and described on https://www.sortingrobotics.com/jiko.  It is our 
understanding that the same machine is featured as the “Automated Infused Pre-Roll Machine” 
at https://customconesusa.com/automated-infused-pre-roll-machine/ as well as on YouTube at 
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=xRY1D1UCKQQ.   Upon our review of the Machine, we 
have reason to believe that it infringes one or more claims of the ‘596 Patent. 
 

Pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 271(a) whoever without authority makes, uses, offers to sell, or 
sells any patented invention, within the United States or imports into the United States any 
patented invention during the term of the patent therefor, infringes the patent.  Under 35 U.S.C. § 
271(b) anyone that induces another to infringe a patent is also liable as an infringer.  Finally, 
under 35 U.S.C. § 271(c) anyone that offers to sell, sells, or imports a machine (or component 
thereof) that is especially made or adapted for use in infringement of a patent, and not having a 
substantial non-infringing use, is liable as an infringer. 
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After reviewing the structure, operation, and output of the Machine, we believe that the 
Machine produces folded packages that infringe at least claims 9, 10, and 11 of the ‘596 Patent 
and that the Machine itself is especially adapted to manufacture infringing packages without a 
substantial non-infringing purpose. 

 
For Example: 
 

US Patent No. 11,130,596 Packages Made Using the Machine (all images from 
https://customconesusa.com/buy-pre-rolled-cones/ and 
https://customconesusa.com/automated-infused-pre-roll-
machine); see also 

 
(https://www.sortingrobotics.com/jiko) 

9. A folded package 
comprising: 

 
a hollow paper cone having an 
exterior, an interior, a length, a 
width, and two ends opposite 
each other joined by a middle 
section, where one end is a 
proximal end, and the other end 
is a distal end and where the 
length is greater than the width; 
and 
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a filling within the cone; 

 

 
wherein the distal end 
comprises approximately a 
quarter of the length of the 
cone; 
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wherein the distal end of the 
cone terminates at a rim; and 

 
wherein a portion of the distal 
end is crimped in on itself and 
folded into the interior of the 
cone such that the rim of the 
distal end is held by plastic 
deformation of the paper within 
the interior of the cone such 
that the folded portion of the 
distal end substantially covers 
the filling within the cone and 
forms a circumferential lip of 
paper at the distal end. 

 
 

 
10. The folded package as 
in claim 9, wherein an access 
hole has a diameter that is less 
than the width of the distal end 
at every point along the length 
of the distal end  
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11. The folded package as 
in claim 10 and including a 
filling, wherein the filling 
further comprises plant matter 
and a core of fluid, the core of 
fluid being formed along the 
length of the cone and 
separated from the paper cone 
by the plant matter. 

 
 

“a rod of oil is perfectly placed in the center of the 
pre-roll” see 
https://customconesusa.com/automated-infused-
pre-roll-machine/ 

 
We understand that the ‘596 patent only recently issued and that you may not have been 

aware of it until your receipt of this letter.  For at least that reason, we are taking this opportunity 
to apprise you of its existence and provide you with an opportunity to take measures to ensure 
that you cease infringing the ‘596 Patent going forward.  We are confident that the parties can 
come to a mutually agreeable arrangement to prevent further infringement without the need to 
resort to legal action. 

 
Therefore, we request that you stop manufacturing, selling, offing to sell, and promoting 

the Machine.  That includes conducting any further video or in-person demonstrations of the 
Machine either through the internet (on your website, YouTube, or others) and in-person 
demonstrations at your place of business, at customer locations, at trade shows, or other 
locations.  We request that you promptly remove, all videos that you (or someone at your 
direction) has posted of the formation of infringing packages from the internet, such as the 
videos presently on display at https://www.sortingrobotics.com/jiko.  We request that you cease 
and desist all manufacturing, selling, and offering to sell any folded packages manufactured 
utilizing the Machine.   
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We request that you undertake to accomplish the foregoing immediately.  We further 
request that you provide a response to this letter within ten (10) days confirming that you are 
undertaking the foregoing measures.  To the extent that you require additional time, please 
provide us with an explanation of what you require and the reasons therefore within the fourteen 
day time period so that the parties can discuss how best to move forward.  As noted above, we 
are confident that the Parties can come to a mutually agreeable solution to the present 
infringement issue without Court intervention so that each may continue on their respective 
businesses. 

 
The foregoing is merely for discussion and exemplary purposes, is not limiting, and is 

subject to change pending further discovery.  It shall not be interpreted as constituting the totality 
of our analysis, assertions, or claims, and is made without prejudice of any kind.  

 
We look forward to receiving you response. 

 
Best Regards, 

       

       
 
M. Chip De Preter 

 
Encl. 
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